

# LG Innotek USB Transmitter

Windows 7, iOS, Android Operating Systems

#### BASIC STARTUP & DEMO GUIDE

Summit Semiconductor Confidential





# **LEGAL NOTICES**

THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS CONFIDENTIAL AND TRADE SECRET INFORMATION OF SUMMIT SEMICONDUCTOR, LLC. AND ITS RECEIPT OR POSSESSION DOES NOT CONVEY ANY RIGHTS TO REPRODUCE OR DISCLOSE ITS CONTENTS, OR TO MANUFACTURE, USE, OR SELL ANYTHING THAT IT MAY DESCRIBE.

REPRODUCTION, DISCLOSURE, OR USE IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT THE SPECIFIC WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF SUMMIT SEMICONDUCTOR, LLC. IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

EVERY EFFORT HAS BEEN MADE TO ENSURE THAT THE INFORMATION IN THIS DOCUMENT IS COMPLETE AND ACCURATE AT THE TIME OF PRINTING; HOWEVER, THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE.

#### **COPYRIGHT 2015-2016 SUMMIT SEMICONDUCTOR, LLC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED**

THE MATERIAL CONTAINED IN THIS DOCUMENT IS ALSO PROTECTED BY COPYRIGHT LAWS OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA AND OTHER COUNTRIES. IT MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED OR DISTRIBUTED IN ANY FORM BY ANY MEANS, ALTERED IN ANY FASHION, OR STORED IN A DATA BASE OR RETRIEVAL SYSTEM, WITHOUT EXPRESS WRITTEN PERMISSION OF SUMMIT SEMICONDUCTOR, LLC.

SUMMIT SEMICONDUCTOR, LLC. CANNOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR UNAUTHORIZED USE OF EQUIPMENT AND WILL NOT MAKE ALLOWANCE OR CREDIT FOR UNAUTHORIZED USE OR ACCESS.

#### **Typographical Conventions**

**Bold text** in the body of the document refers to information silkscreened on the relevant circuit board.

Bold text in the gray frames indicates commands of particular relevance to the example console commands/output.

#### **Document Revision History**

Date	Revision	Description
7/2015	1.0	Initial version
3/2016	1.1	Update operating instructions, added diagrams.

#### **Technical Terms**

Acronym/Term	Description
Rx	Receive/Receiver
Тх	Transmit/Transmitter
USB Tx	LG Innotek USB Transmitter

#### **ESD Precautions**



Observe all ESD safety precautions when handling the Summit Wireless Rx Module and amplifier boards. Failure to follow ESD safety precautions could result in damage to the Summit Rx Module and amplifier components.



# **Table of Contents**

1 Introduction	1
2 Equipment	1
3 Windows 7	1
3.1 Installing TUSB Windows Driver	2
3.2 Windows Setting for the LG Innotek USB Tx	5
4 Mac OSX Operation	11
4.1 OSX Setting for the LG Innotek USB Tx	12
5 iOS Operation	14
5 Android 5.0 Operation	15
6.1 Stopping USB Audio Player Pro	19
7 USB Tx Operation	19
7.1 Factory Reset	19
7.2 Adding Speakers	19
7.3 Saving Network Configuration	20
7.4 Error Conditions	20

#### **Declaration of conformity**

We, LG Innotek Co., Ltd. of 26, Hanamsandan 5beon-ro, Gwangsan-gu,Gwangju, 62229, Korea declare under our sole responsibility that our product

# CE

Manufacturer: PT. LG innotek Indonesia Address: Bekasi International Industrial Estate, Block C8 No.12&12A Desa Cibatu, Cikarang Selatan, Bekasi 17750, Indonesia

Contact Person: Inchang Jeong E-mail: ic.jeong@lginnotek.com

OPERATING FREQUENCY: 5 180 MHz ~ 5 320 MHz 5 500 MHz ~ 5 700 MHz 5 745 MHz ~ 5 825 MHz

RF OUTPUT POWER: 10.14 dBm(5 180 MHz ~ 5 320 MHz) 10.46 dBm(5 500 MHz ~ 5 700 MHz) 14.63 dBm(5 745 MHz ~ 5 825 MHz)



# **1** Introduction

The LG Innotek USB Tx implements a complete Summit Wireless audio network transmitter in a small, inexpensive form factor. This guide discusses the required equipment, software and application specific configurations to operate the USB Tx using: Windows OS, Mac OSX, iOS and Android devices. By using this guide, you should be able to properly connect the module to your chosen demonstration platform, enumerate the USB Tx to the host system, create a Summit audio network and play content wirelessly to any attached speakers.

# 2 Equipment

To operate a Summit network utilizing the LG Innotek USB Tx you will need the following:

- LG Innotek USB Tx
- 1 or more Summit Rx enabled speakers, up to 32 speakers maximum
- Windows PC (Win 7) or Apple Mac (OSX10.10) or iOS device or Android device (Lollipop)
- Powered USB Hub with USB Type A male to USB Type B male (optional depending on USB hub)
- USB OTG Cable (Android)



• Apple Lightning to Camera USB Cable (Lightning equipped iOS device) or Apple Camera Kit (30pin iOS device)



## 3 Windows 7

When using the USB Tx under the Windows 7 OS, a device driver must be installed. Summit has provided a sample driver from Thesycon. This driver will operate normally for 1 hour, after which it will issue a tone every 5 minutes in the audio stream.



## 3.1 Installing TUSB Windows Driver

It is recommended that you install the device driver prior to plugging in the USB Tx. If you plug in the USB Tx prior to installing the device driver, you will see the following if you open up your computers Device Manager.



The LG Innotek USB Tx requires a device driver to operate under Windows OS. As part of the release package for the USB Tx, Summit includes a demonstration USB driver created by Thesycon. The driver is part of the executable TUSBAudio\_v2.29.0\_eval\_Summit\_2015\_04\_15.exe. This file is an executable archive, which you will need to expand to your system. Once you do this, navigate to the following location:

<installed\_location>\TUSBAudio\_v2.29.0\_eval\_Summit\_2015\_04\_15\EvaluationKit\DriverPackages.



In this directory, you will find an executable for installing the device driver. As shown below, double click on the following file: Summit\_eval\_DriverSetup\_v2.29.0.exe.

2	🕜 🔍 🕫 🕨 Control Panel	Hardware and Sound
	Control Panel Home	Devices and Printers Add a device Add a printer Add a Bluetooth device Mouse Sector Manager
2	System and Security Network and Internet Hardware and Sound	AutoPlay Change default settings for media or devices   Play CDs or other media automatically
	Programs User Accounts	Sound Adjust system volume   Change system sounds   Manage audio devices

This will launch the device driver installer. The following pictures show the various screens as you progress through the installation.





The installation tool provides the ability to set the install location of the driver. We strongly recommend that you install the device driver in the default location as shown below.

Choose the folder in which to ins	tall TUSBAudio Driver Evaluation v2.29.0.	
Setup will install TUSBAudio Drive different folder, dick Browse and	er Evaluation v2.29.0 in the following folder. To d select another folder. Click Install to start the	install in a installation.
Destination Folder		
Destination Folder	TUSBAudio_Driver_Eval	wse
Destination Folder	TUSBAudio_Driver_Eval Bro	wse
Destination Folder	TUSBAudio_Driver_Eval Brow	wse
Destination Folder C:\Program Files\Thesycon\ Space required: 2.6MB Space available: 108.5GB	TUSBAudio_Driver_Eval Brow	wse
Destination Folder C:\Program Files\Thesycon\ Space required: 2.6MB Space available: 108.5GB	TUSBAudio_Driver_Eval Brow	wse

Setup		
n <b>stalling</b> Please wait while TUSBAud	io Driver Evaluation v2.29.0 is	s being installed.
Waiting		
 Preparation.		
Preparing installation. This may take some time	to complete. Please wait	
Execute: 'C:\Users\rhog Waiting	e\AppData\Local\Temp\7zSA8	}FB.tmp\TUSBAudioCplApp.exe
	< Ba	ick Next > Cancel
	< Ba	ick Next > Can



The program will install a number of files, and when this is complete, you will see the screen show the installation was successful.

stallation Complete		5
Setup was completed successfully.		9
Execute: regsvr32 /s "C: \Program Files Create shortcut: C: \ProgramData \Micro	<pre>\Thesycon\TUSBAudio_Driver_Eval\tusbaudio psoft\Windows\Start Menu\Programs\Thesyco</pre>	^
Create shortcut: C: ProgramData Wicro	osoft\Windows\Start Menu\Programs\Startup\	
Preinstalling drivers.		
This may take some time to complete. F	Please wait	
Preinstallation was successful. Click Nex	xt to continue.	
		-



Once the installation is complete, you can then plug the module into the system.

#### 3.2 Windows Setting for the LG Innotek USB Tx

The Windows operating system provides several different controls for setting the behavior of the USB Tx. These settings include: volume, number of attached speakers and audio source sample rate. The following screen shots show the various settings and how to access them.



To set the PC correctly for the number of attached speakers, you will need to enter the Sound Configuration tool. This is accomplished one of two ways. The first is to use the following click sequence with your mouse: Start -> Control Panel -> Hardware and Sound -> Manage Audio Device.

2		
2	G 🔵 🗣 晒 ၊ Control Pane	Hardware and Sound
Ш	Control Panel Home	Devices and Printers
I	System and Security	Add a device   Add a printer   Add a Bluetooth device   Mouse   🚱 Device Manage
2	Network and Internet	AutoPlay
н	Hardware and Sound	Change default settings for media or devices Play CDs or other media automatically
	Programs	Sound
id	User Accounts	Adjust system volume Change system sounds Manage audio devices

You can also access this screen by right clicking the volume icon in your system tray and selecting Playback Devices from the popup menu. The Audio configuration screen is shown below. The Summit enabled USB device is listed as the TUSBAudio Eval (0016) device.

Playback	Recording Sou	nds Com	munications		
Select a	playback device	below to	modify its	ettings:	
	Digital Aud 2- High Def Not plugge	io (HDMI) inition Au d in	idio Device		
0	Speakers Conexant S Ready	martAudi	o HD		
	Speakers ThinkPad O	neLink Pr	o Dock Aud	lio	
	Speakers TUSBAudio Default Dev	Eval (0016 ice			
				<u></u>	
Config	gure	10.00	Set De	ault 💌	Properties
				COMPANY AND	10000

At this point, you can set the USB Tx as your default audio device if you choose.



By clicking on the Configure button, you will enter the Speaker Setup screen. This screen allows you to choose options such as Mono, Stereo and various multi-channel options. When you select an audio channel / speaker setup, the screen also gives you the option of sending a test tone to each speaker you have. It will play a chime around to the various speaker / audio slots for you to confirm that all of your speakers are correctly connected.

Choose your configuration	n
Select the speaker setup below the configuration on your compu	it is most like er.
Audio channels: Mono Stereo Quadraphonic Surround 3.1 Surround 5.1 Surround 5.1 Surround 5.1 Surround	
► Test	Click any speaker above to test it.

Clicking Next allows you to set the system for your mix of full range / satellite speakers, as shown in the figure on the next page.







Clicking Next will save the configuration. The following screen is displayed. Click Finish on the following screen to exit the Speaker Setup tool.

0	Speaker Setup	X
	Configuration complete If you click "Finish" your new settings will be applied to this audio device. To make further changes, you can use the Properties dialog or run this wizard again.	
	Finish	cel

Clicking Properties on the Sound screen will allow you make changes to the name of the USB Tx.

ancements Advanced	
Speakers	
Change Icon	
L(0016)	Properties
(0010)	Lindpender
tion Available	
Use this device (enable)	
1. The second	
	Advanced Speakers Change Icon ation I (0016) Use this device (enable)



Clicking on the Levels tab will allow you to modify the system volume.

General	Levels	Enhancements	Advanced		
Spea	kers	1		4	
		R.	OK	Cancel	Apply

The enhancement tab allows access to certain audio functions (such as Bass Management and Sound Correction) that have been embedded in Windows OS. These are not managing Summit features such as MyZone. It is not recommended to make changes on this screen.

ieneral	Levels	Enhancements	Advanced	
Select config playba	the enh uration. ack.	ancements to app Changes may not	oly for your curren t take effect until	nt speaker the next time you start
Dis	able all e	nhancements		
	lass Man	agement		
	n wai Su Com Cor	rection		
	oudness	Equalization		
Enhar	ncement	Properties		
	Descript	ion: Bass Manage frequencies l reduce loss o	ement enhances o below a specified or distortion of ba	or redirects crossover point to ss signals.
	Provi	der: Microsoft		
	Sta	tus: Disabled		Settings
Rest	ore Defa	ults		Preview V



The audio source sample rate can be changed by clicking on the Advanced tab. Windows will source material over the USB port at 48kHz, 96kHz and intermediate values. It will support bit depth on audio from 16 to 24 bits.

General	Levels	Enhancem	ents	Advance	1		
Defa	ult Forma	at					
Sele	ct the sa	mple rate a	and bit	depth to	be used	when runn	ing
in sr	nared mo	de.					
24 1	bit, 48000	) Hz (Studi	o Qual	ity)	-	Te Te	st
Exclu	sive Mod	le					
V A	llow app	lications t	o take	exclusive	control o	f this devic	e
<b>V</b> 0	ive exclu	sive mode	applic	ations p	iority		
Res	tore Def	aults					

Clicking Okay will return you to the Sound screen.

To change volume on a Windows OS system, there are several methods and controls available. Each individual audio application typically has a volume control embedded. There is the Levels tab as shown above in the Speaker Properties screens and the ability to use the Thesycon mixer control (installed with the driver) from the System Tray. You can access this mixer by right clicking on the volume icon in the System Tray and selecting Open Mixer Volume from the popup menu. This mixer control allows you to select the overall Summit volume (far left slider), as well as application and systems sounds from the sliders to the right.

Device	Applications	a	00
Speakers 👻	System Sounds	Amazon Music	Inbox - Mailbox - Richard Hoge
-	-	0	-
<b>(</b> ))	(ه)	(1)	(1)



It is recommended to take care when selecting the volume. Small changes in the volume slider can result in large changes to perceived volume.

# 4 Mac OSX Operation

The Summit enabled USB Tx does not require any new drivers to be installed in OSX (Version 10.10). OSX contains native drivers that will allow basic control of the USB Tx including speaker source assignment and volume. When the USB Tx is plugged into the Mac, you can confirm the USB Tx was correctly recognized in the Sound screen of System Preferences.





When you open the sounds screen, select the Output tab, and you will see an entry for Summit Audio 2.0 Out with type USB.

	Sound	Q Search
	Sound Effects Output Input	
Select a device for sound	d output:	
Name	Туре	
Internal Speakers	Built-in	
Summit Audio 2.0 Out	USB	
Apple TV	AirPlay	
Tanan a sa a san		
Settings for the selected o	device: The selected device has no output controls	
Settings for the selected o	fevice: The selected device has no output controls	0
Settings for the selected o	fevice: The selected device has no output controls me:	? ()))    Mute

This screen will also allow you to control the master volume to the Summit enabled USB Tx.

#### 4.1 OSX Setting for the LG Innotek USB Tx

To control the USB Tx in OSX, you must use the Audio/MIDI Setup program. This can be found under Launchpad -> Others.





Once you have opened the Audio/MIDI program, you will need to select the Summit Audio 2.0 Out device from the list on the left hand side. This will bring up the available controls on the right hand side of the program.

• • •		Audio Devices			
AirPlay 0 inf 2 out Built-in Microphone 2 inf 0 out Built-in Output Built-in Output	Summit Audio 2.0 Out Clock source: Default	Input Output			?
Summit Audio 2.0 Out 0 in/ 8 out	Source: Default Format: 192000.0 Hz 💟 8ch-	24bit Integer			
	Ch Master 1: Front Left 2: Front Center 4: Low Frequency Effects 5: Back Left 6: Back Right 7: Side Left 8: Side Right	Volume	Value	08	
+ - *		Con	ligure S	peake	rs

You must select the Output tab in configuration frame. This will provide access to select audio sample rate and control the main volume to the USB Tx.

(			0	.40 The Offensine	Caliatar
	AirPlay 0 in/ 2 out		Summit Au	idio 2.0 Out	
	Built-in Microphone 2 in/ 0 out	Ļ	Clock source	ce: Default	
эC	Built-in Output 0 in/ 2 out	¥.			
	Summit Audio 2.0 Our 0 in/ 8 out	t ∎⊅	Source:	Default	
			Format:	192000.0 Hz 🚩	8ch-24bit Integer
				32000.0 Hz	
			Ch	44100.0 Hz	Vol
			Master	48000.0 Hz	
			1: Front Lett	96000.0 Hz	
			3: Front Center	192000.0 Hz	
ea			4: Low Frequence	y Effects	
iea			5: Back Left		õ-
			6: Back Right		0-
			7: Side Left		<u> </u>
			8: Side Right		0-



Clicking on the Configure Speakers button will allow you to set audio slot to speaker position. This screen allows for multichannel or stereo setups. In stereo mode, the default is left to slot 1, and right to slot 2. Clicking Apply will save any changes and Done will exit the speaker configuration screen.

Stereo	Multichannel	Stereo
For each speaker, a connection, click a	left ront	innel connected to the speaker. To test the ind.
		•

Volume may be controlled from the Sound screen in System preferences, the Audio/MIDI program screen or using the Volume slider on the menu bar (if enabled).



It is recommended to take care when selecting the volume. Small changes in the volume slider can result in large changes to perceived volume.

# **5 iOS Operation**

Using the USB Tx with an iOS device requires the use of a special cable. For Lightning connector equipped devices, you will need a Lightning to USB Camera cable. For 30 pin connector devices, a 30 pin to USB Camera cable is required. These cables allow the iOS device to become a USB host for the Summit enabled USB Tx. The USB cable from the iOS device should be connected to a powered USB hub in the host connector. The Summit enabled USB Tx should be plugged into one of the endpoint slots on the hub.





Once the system is properly cabled and powered, you can launch the Music player application to send audio to the USB Tx.



# 6 Android 5.0 Operation

As with an IOS device, using the LG Innotek USB Tx with an Android 5.x (Lollipop) or 6.x (Marshmallow) device requires the use of a special cable. A USB On The Go (OTG) cable allows the Android device to operate as the USB host device. The USB Tx should be plugged into a powered USB hub, as the USB port on the Android device may not be able to supply sufficient power to the USB Tx. When using an Android device, we recommend that you use USB Audio Player Pro, which is available for purchase on the Google Play store.



When using on an Android system with USB Audio Player Pro, you should ensure that the USB Tx is attached to the Android device prior to opening the application. If your USB Tx is unrecognized due to insufficient power, incorrect cabling, or other failure, you will see the following screen when you open Audio Player Pro. Newer version of the application will automatically launch when the USB Tx is recognized by your Android device if you have checked the "Use by default for this USB device" checkbox shown in the second image below.





When the device is sufficiently powered and there are no other install issues, you will see the following screen when you open USB Audio Player Pro.





Once the USB Tx is recognized, you should set the player's application volume to max volume.



Under the settings drop down menu (3 dots in the upper right corner), you will find a menu item labeled Hardware Volume. Select this to control the Summit network volume.



The Hardware Volume item will bring up the following screen for controlling the USB Audio Hardware Volume. You may need to adjust the volume slightly to start the audio playback over the Summit network.



USB Audio Player Pro may start the Hardware Volume at the maximum level. It is recommended that you pull the volume all the way down before beginning playback, and then adjust the Hardware Volume up to a safe level.



It is recommended to take care when selecting the volume. Small changes in the volume slider can result in large changes to perceived volume.

Subsequent connections of the USB Tx to the Android device can automatically launch the USB Audio Player Pro application if you have checked the "Use by default for this USB device" checkbox. In that case, the application will launch and display a notifier that the Android device has initialized properly.





## 6.1 Stopping USB Audio Player Pro

Newer versions of the USB Audio Player Pro (2.4.7+) close cleanly. It is highly recommended you update your application if it is an older revision than listed above.

To exit, press the back arrow to get the exit prompt shown below and press OK.



## 7 USB Tx Operation

The USB Tx is equipped with 1 pushbutton for control and 2 LEDs to indicate the state of the USB Tx and the network. The basic operations of adding speakers, saving the network configuration and resetting the USB Tx to a factory reset condition can all be accomplished with these elements. Additional controls could be accesses via an application utilizing Summit API calls over the USB interface.

## 7.1 Factory Reset

When the device is initially power up for the first time, the USB Tx will be in factory reset. A blue LED will blink at the "fast" rate of approximately 1 second on, 1 second off to indicate the system is in a reset state. The user can place the USB Tx into a factory reset state at any time by connecting the USB Tx to a USB power source and then pressing and holding the button on the USB Tx for approximately 5 seconds.

## 7.2 Adding Speakers

When the USB Tx is in factory reset mode, a short press and release on the button will initiate a speaker discovery process. If speakers are found, the blue LED goes from a fast blink to a much slower blink rate of approximately 3 seconds on, 3 seconds off. If the speakers have static speaker assignments, the USB Tx will be ready to play sound at this point. If the speakers have @Rx control, you should set the individual speaker positions for each speaker with their respective @Rx control at this time. If no speaker type is set using the @RX control, that speaker will not be saved



#### 7.3 Saving Network Configuration

Once you have discovered speakers, and the blue LED is in the slow blink mode, a short press on the USB Tx button saves the current configuration. When this completes, the blue LED will stop blinking and remain on.

## 7.4 Adding Speakers to a Saved Configuration

Adding speaker to a previously saved configuration is just like adding speakers from a reset condition: A quick press of the button starts the discovery process, and the blue LED begins the "Fast Blink" state. When the discover process completes, the blue LED returns to the slow blinking blue condition. Another button press saves the new configuratiom.

## 7.5 Error Conditions

If a speaker is lost from the network (not visible to the USB Tx) or other system level errors occur, a red LED will light on the system. In the case of a missing speaker, typically the speaker will be returned automatically to the network by Summit's SpeakerKeeper<sup>™</sup> technology (provided the speaker is powered on); no user interaction is required to clear the fault. In this scenario the red LED will be lit only momentarily before the speaker is returned to the network by SpeakerKeeper. In other cases, the fault may require user interaction with the Summit system to identify the issue (such as an un-powered speaker) and correct the problem.

		BLINK STATE AND COLOR									
SPEAKER STATE	FAST BLUE	SLOW BLUE	SOLID BLUE	SLOW RED	FAST BLUE/RED	SOLID RED	SLOW BLUE/RED				
No speakers discovered (reset)	х										
Adding to Saved	Х										
Discovered, not saved		х									
Saved cfg			Х								
Spkrs Discovered, not saved, Missing				X (Missing won't be saved)							
Adding with Missing					X (Can't ADD)						
Saved cfg with Missing						X (Can't ADD)					
Added, not saved, previously saved spkr Missing							X (Can't save until Missing spkr restored)				

## 7.6 Conditions Indicated by LED State



File: USB\_TX\_UG\_v1.2

This device complies with Part 15 of the FCC Rules. Operation is subject to the following two conditions: (1) this device may not cause harmful interference, and

(2) this device must accept any interference received, including interference that may cause undesired operation.

This equipment has been tested and found to comply with the limits for a Class B digital device, pursuant to part 15 of the FCC Rules.

These limits are designed to provide reasonable protection against harmful interference in a residential installation.

This equipment generates, uses and can radiate radio frequency energy and, if not installed and used in accordance with the instructions,

may cause harmful interference to radio communications. However, there is no guarantee that interference will not occur in a particular installation.

If this equipment does cause harmful interference to radio or television reception, which can be determined by turning the equipment off and on,

the user is encouraged to try to correct the interference by one or more of the following measures:

- Reorient or relocate the receiving antenna.

- Increase the separation between the equipment and receiver.

- Connect the equipment into an outlet on a circuit different from that to which the receiver is connected.

- Consult the dealer or an experienced radio/TV technician for help.

Warning & Caution:

Any changes or modifications to the equipment not expressly approved by the party responsible for compliance could void user's authority to operate

the equipment. Antenna shall be mounted in such a manner to minimize the potential for human contact during normal operation. The antenna should not

be contacted during operation to avoid the possibility of exceeding the FCC radio frequency exposure limit. A minimum separation distance of 20 cm

must be maintained between the antenna and the person for this appliance to satisfy the RF exposure requirement.

This device complies with Industry Canada license-exempt RSS standard(s). Operation in subject to The following two conditions:

(1) this device may not cause interference, and

(2) this device must accept any interference, including interference that may cause undesired operation of the device.

Cet appareil est conforme avec Industrie Canada RSS standard exempts de licence(s), Son utilisation est soumise Les deux conditions suivantes:

(1) cet appareil ne peut pas provoquer d'interf rences et

(2) cet appareil doit accepter Toute interf rence, y compris les interf rences qui peuvent causer un mauvais fonctionnement du dispositif.

\* This device is going to be operated in 5 150 MHz ~ 5 250 MHz frequency range, it is restricted in indoor environment only.